
 
 

Licensing Act Committee 
 

Date: Wednesday, 16 November 2022 
 

Time: 
 

6.30 p.m. or at the rise of Regulatory and 
General Purposes Committee, whichever is 
later. 
 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 
 
Contact Officer:  Anne Beauchamp 
Tel: 0151 691 8608 
e-mail: annebeauchamp@wirral.gov.uk  
Website: Wirral.gov.uk  
 

 
This meeting will be webcast at 

https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 
AGENDA  
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members of the Committee are asked to declare any disclosable 

pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests, in connection with any 
application on the agenda and state the nature of the interest. 
 

2. MINUTES  
 
 To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the 

Licensing Act Committee held on 7 June 2022. 
 
 
 

Please note that public seating is limited, therefore members of the public 
are encouraged to arrive in good time. 
 
Wirral Council is fully committed to equalities and our obligations under The 
Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty. If you have any 
adjustments that would help you attend or participate at this meeting, please 
let us know as soon as possible and we would be happy to facilitate where 
possible. Please contact committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:annebeauchamp@wirral.gov.uk
https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


3. MINUTES OF THE LICENSING PANEL (Pages 1 - 34) 
 
 To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the Licensing Panel 

meetings held on 27 May, 8, 22 and 23 June, 11 August and 16 and 
23 September 2022. 
 

4. PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS  
 
 4.1 Public Questions 

 
  Notice of question to be given in writing or by email by 12 

noon, 11 November 2022 to the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
(committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to be dealt with in 
accordance with Standing Order 10. 
 
For more information on how your personal information will be 
used, please see this link: 
Document Data Protection Protocol for Public Speakers at 
Committees | Wirral Council 
 
Please telephone the Committee Services Officer if you have 
not received an acknowledgement of your question by the 
deadline for submission. 
 

 4.2 Statements and Petitions 
 

  Notice of representations to be given in writing or by email by 
12 noon, 11 November 2022 to the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer (committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to be dealt 
with in accordance with Standing Order 11.1. 
 
Petitions may be presented to the Committee if provided to 
Democratic and Member Services no later than 10 working 
days before the meeting, at the discretion of the Chair. The 
person presenting the petition will be allowed to address the 
meeting briefly (not exceeding three minute) to outline the 
aims of the petition. The Chair will refer the matter to another 
appropriate body of the Council within whose terms of 
reference it falls without discussion, unless a relevant item 
appears elsewhere on the Agenda. If a petition contains more 
than 5,000 signatures, it will be debated at a subsequent 
meeting of Council for up to 15 minutes, at the discretion of 
the Mayor. 
 
Please telephone the Committee Services Officer if you have 
not received an acknowledgement of your statement/petition 
by the deadline for submission. 
 

 4.3 Questions by Members 
 

  Questions by Members to dealt with in accordance with 
Standing Orders 12.3 to 12.8. 
 

https://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Data%20Protection%20Protocol%20for%20Public%20Speakers%20at%20Co&ID=1298&RPID=517238898
https://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Data%20Protection%20Protocol%20for%20Public%20Speakers%20at%20Co&ID=1298&RPID=517238898


5. CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT REVIEW (Pages 35 - 102) 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
 The terms of reference for this committee can be found at the end of 

this agenda. 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING PANEL 
 

Friday, 27 May 2022 
 

Present:   

 Councillors D Burgess-Joyce 
D Mitchell 
C O'Hagan 
 

 

 
48 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  

 
Resolved – That Councillor D Burgess-Joyce be appointed Chair for this 
meeting. 
 

49 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest.  
 
No such declarations were made. 
 

50 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF 
THE LICENSING ACT 2003 - 140-144 TELEGRAPH ROAD, HESWALL  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application that had 
been received from Hydes Brewery Limited for a Premises Licence in respect 
of 140-144 Telegraph Road, Heswall. 
  
It was reported that the premises do not currently have a Premises Licence.  
The hours applied for the Premises Licence were set out within the report.   
  
The applicant had submitted an operating schedule setting out how the 
business would be conducted/managed in accordance with the four licensing 
objectives. A copy of the full application was available. Members were 
advised that the proposals set out in the operating schedule may become 
conditions of the licence should the application be granted.  They were also 
advised that following discussions with Merseyside Police the applicant had 
agreed that in addition to the proposed conditions set out in the operating 
schedule, they would be content to have a number of conditions, as outlined 
within the report, placed on the Premises Licence should the application be 
granted. 
 
In respect of the application, five representations had been received from 
local residents.  The representations related to concerns of public nuisance 
that may be caused by customers of the premises using the outside area of 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



the premises and leaving the premises at a later hour should the application 
be granted.  Residents also had concerns regarding the potential for noise 
nuisance from entertainment. 
 
A representation had also been received from Ward Councillor, Andrew 
Hodson, which supported the representations made by local residents. Copies 
of the representations were available. 
 
The applicant attended the meeting together with their agent.  A local resident 
was also in attendance at the meeting together with Ward Councillor, Andrew 
Hodson. 
 
The Licensing Manager confirmed that all documentation had been sent and 
received and clarified that there had been a typographical error in the report 
and advised that the requested Hours Open to the Public were Sunday to 
Saturday and not Sunday to Thursday as stated within the report. 
 
The Licensing Manager advised that apologies had been received from two 
residents who were unable to attend, however Members were advised that 
the local resident in attendance would speak on behalf of their 
representations.  The Licensing Manager outlined the report.    
 
The applicant’s agent informed Members of the Panel that Hydes is a 
Manchester family business with 40 pubs in the North West and that they 
supply beer nationally.  It was reported that there have been no problems in 
any of these premises and that they are operated responsibly.  Examples of 
the businesses currently operated by them were provided and Members were 
advised that a significant investment was to be made in these premises to 
create a modern and environment offering premium dining and that 
approximately 70% of the sales would relate to food.   
 
The applicant’s agent informed Members of the Panel that the reason for the 
hours applied for was to provide flexibility to allow for occasional events at the 
premises, however Members were advised that it would be likely that the 
premises would close before 1.00 am.   
 
The applicant and their agent advised that the business would operate to 
uphold the licensing objectives.  The Licensing Panel were advised that the 
measures would include the provision of high specification CCTV, 
comprehensive training for staff and a Challenge 25 Policy and that deliveries 
and disposal of bottles from the premises would be done so as not to cause a 
disturbance to local residents.  Members were informed that the business 
would be respectful to residents.  The applicant’s agent referred to the fact 
that there were no representations from any of the Responsible Authorities 
and this was an indication that they were content that the operation of the 
premises would not undermine the licensing objectives. 
 

Page 2



The applicant and their agent responded to questions from Ward Councillor 
Andrew Hodson, the local resident, Members of the Licensing Panel and the 
Legal Advisor to the Panel. 
 
In response to questions, the applicant advised that they would amend the 
hours for the supply of alcohol on a Friday and Saturday from 1.00 am to 12 
midnight and that the applicant would be willing to meet with residents. 
 
Councillor Andrew Hodson addressed Members of the Licensing Panel on 
behalf of local residents.  He advised that the main concern of local residents 
was the hours applied for and not the premises itself.  He highlighted their 
concerns which related to public nuisance being caused due to the premises 
operating at a late hour in close proximity to residential properties.  He 
informed Members of the Licensing Panel that the local resident had particular 
concerns regarding the use of the car park at the rear of the premises at a late 
hour.   
 
Ward Councillor, Andrew Hodson responded to questions from Members of 
the Licensing Panel and the Legal Advisor to the Panel. 
 
In response to questions, Councillor Hodson advised that the majority of local 
residents would be content for the premises to close at 11.30 pm, however it 
was pointed out by Members of the Licensing Panel that the majority of the 
written representations from local residents indicated they would be content 
for the premises to close at 12 midnight. 
 
The local resident advised that he had lived there for a number of years in a 
quiet area and that this premises had been closed for seven years.  He 
therefore expressed concerns that noise nuisance would occur from the car 
park and customers leaving the premises late at night. 
 
The applicant and their agent responded to the concerns raised by the local 
resident and assured them that this would be a high quality premises with a 
homely atmosphere and that the applicant would work together with the local 
community. 
 
In determining the application Members of the Licensing Panel had regard to 
the Licensing Objectives, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the 
Statutory Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
In considering the representations made, Members of the Licensing Panel 
had regard to the willingness of the applicant to work with local residents so 
as not to cause them to be disturbed by the operation of the business.   
 
In coming to their decision, Members had regard to their Licensing Policy 
which refers to the proximity of residential properties when determining the 
hours that licensed premises should operate. 

Page 3



 
Members also had regard to the conditions put forward both in the operating 
schedule and agreed with Merseyside Police. 
 
In determining the application Members also had regard to the fact that there 
were no representations from any of the Responsible Authorities, in particular 
Environmental Health.   
 
Members also took into account Section 11 of the Guidance in respect of the 
review mechanism provided by the Licensing Act 2003 when problems 
associated with the Licensing Objectives occur after the grant of a Premises 
Licence. 
  
Resolved – 
  
(1)   That in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
application.  

(2)  That the application for a Premises Licence in respect of 140-144 
Telegraph Road, Heswall, be granted with the following hours: 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol (consumption ‘on’ and ‘off’ the premises) 
 
Sunday to Thursday 11:00 to 11:30 
Friday and Saturday  11:00 to 00:00 
 
Live and Recorded Music 
 
Sunday to Thursday  11:00 to 11:30 
Friday and Saturday  11:00 to 00:00 
 
Hours open to the Public 
 
Sunday to Thursday 11:00 to 00:00 
Friday and Saturday  11:00 to 00:30 
 
Non-Standard Timings 
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 
Christmas Eve  11:00 to 01:00 
Boxing Day  11:00 to 01:00 
New Years Eve  11:00 to 01:00 
 
Live music and Recorded Music 
 

Page 4



Christmas Eve  11:00 to 01:00 
Boxing Day  11:00 to 01:00 
New Years Eve  11:00 to 01:00 
 
Hours Open to the Public 
 
Christmas Eve  11:00 to 02:00 
Boxing Day  11:00 to 02:00 
New Years Eve  11:00 to 02:00 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



LICENSING PANEL 
 

Wednesday, 8 June 2022 
 

Present: Councillors A Hodson (Chair) 

  C Jones 
S Williams 
 

 

 
1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  

 
Resolved – That Councillor A Hodson be appointed Chair for this 
meeting. 
 

2 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest.  
 
No such declarations were made. 
 

3 APPLICATION TO REVIEW A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 - WILD INN, BANKS ROAD, 
WEST KIRBY  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application that had 
been received from Environmental Health for a Review of a Premises Licence 
in respect of Wild Inn, Banks Road, West Kirby. 
 
The Licensing Manager reported that the Licence Holder had advised they 
were unable to attend the meeting and had requested that this matter be 
adjourned. 
 
Resolved – That this matter be adjourned to Wednesday 22 June 2022. 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



LICENSING PANEL 
 

Wednesday, 22 June 2022 
 

Present: Councillors A Hodson (Chair) 

  C Jones 
S Williams 
 

 

 
 

4 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  
 
Resolved – That Councillor A Hodson be appointed Chair for this 
meeting. 
 

5 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest.  
 
No such declarations were made. 
 

6 APPLICATION TO REVIEW A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 - WILD INN, BANKS ROAD, 
WEST KIRBY  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application that had 
been received from Environmental Health for a Review of a Premises Licence 
in respect of Wild Inn, Banks Road, West Kirby, under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 
  
The Director of Law and Governance advised that the Panel may, having 
regard to the application for a Review and any relevant representations, take 
such of the following steps as it considered appropriate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives: 
  

 Modify the Conditions of the Licence.  

 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the Licence.  

 Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.  

 Suspend the Licence for a period not exceeding three months.  

 Revoke the Licence. 
 

Members were informed that the Licensing Authority may decide that no 
action would be appropriate if it found that the review did not require it to take 
any steps that were appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. 
  

Public Document Pack

Page 9



The grounds for review were in relation to music emanating from the premises 
and causing public nuisance to local residents. 
  
It was reported that the premises held a Premises Licence allowing the 
licensable activities as set out within the report. 
 
In respect of the review application, six representations had been received 
from local residents who supported the application to review the Premises 
Licence. 
 
A representation had been received from Ward Councillor, Alison Wright who 
supported the application made by Environmental Health and the 
representations made by local residents. 
 
A representation had been received from the Licensing Authority who had 
reported that complaints had been received from local residents relating to 
noise emanating from the premises and as a result of these complaints a 
number of visits had been made to the premises by a Licensing Enforcement 
Officer who deemed that the noise coming from the premises undermined the 
prevention of public nuisance licensing objective.   
 
Copies of all representations were available. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder attended the meeting together with their 
business partner and their legal representative. 
 
Ward Councillor, Alison Wright attended the meeting.  The Licensing 
Operations Manager, a Licensing Enforcement Officer and an Environmental 
Health Officer also attended the meeting. 
  
The Licensing Manager confirmed that all documentation had been sent and 
received.  It was reported that a number of representations received from 
were from local residents who wished to remain anonymous and therefore 
would not attend the Hearing. 
 
The Environmental Health Officer reported that a considerable number of 
complaints had been received from local residents relating to nuisance 
caused by live music emanating from the premises.  He advised that further to 
the complaints received, visits had been made to the premises by 
Environmental Health and it had been identified that music could be heard 
from the premises when the doors were closed and became even louder 
when the doors were open, however further to bringing these matters to the 
attention of the Designated Premises Supervisor on a number of occasions, 
he had failed to manage the premises in such a way to prevent public 
nuisance being caused by the premises.   
 

Page 10



The Environmental Health Officer responded to questions from Members of 
the Licensing Panel and the legal advisor to the Panel. 
 
The Licensing Operations Manager reported that the Licensing Authority had 
also received a number of complaints relating to loud music emanating from 
the premises and had sought to engage with the premises to address the 
issues raised.  He further reported that the premises had failed to take 
appropriate action to prevent nuisance being caused by music escaping from 
the premises and customers congregating outside the premises.  He therefore 
advised that the Licensing Authority fully supported the application for a 
review of the Premises Licence.  The Licensing Enforcement Officer in 
attendance reported that nuisance had continued to be caused to local 
residents subsequent to the application for the review. 
 
The Licensing Operations Manager responded to questions from Members of 
the Licensing Panel and the legal advisor to the Panel. 
 
Councillor Wright addressed the Panel and advised Members that she 
supported the information provided by Environmental Health and the 
Licensing Authority.  Councillor Wright informed Members that the premises is 
situated in a densely populated area and that she had received numerous 
complaints in respect of noise nuisance caused by both live and recorded 
music.  Councillor Wright reported that the outside area was often in use 
beyond 9.30 pm despite a condition of the licence requiring this area not to be 
used beyond this time.  Councillor Wright informed Members that windows 
were very often left open and that her own monitoring outside the premises 
had identified that music could be heard in neighbouring roads, she therefore 
believed that the premises were not being managed in such a way to prevent 
public nuisance. 
 
Councillor Wright responded to questions from Members of the Licensing 
Panel and the legal advisor to the Panel. 
 
The legal representative of the Premises Licence Holder addressed the Panel 
and apologised on behalf of the Premises Licence Holder that the issues 
raised by Environmental Health and the Licensing Authority had not been 
dealt with as they should have been.  He acknowledged that changes in the 
management of the premises would have to take place to address the 
concerns raised through the review and proposed the following measures: 
 

 The provision of music to cease at 10.30 pm 

 Double or secondary glazing be installed in the bi fold doors 

 A noise limiter to be in operation at the premises set at a limit to be 
agreed with Environmental Health 

 An air lock porch to be installed inside the entrance to the premises 
 

Page 11



He informed Members of the Licensing Panel that the premises had 
voluntarily employed 2 SIA registered door staff to manage the outside area 
and also to manage customers leaving the premises on Fridays and 
Saturdays and that the premises would be content for this to become a 
condition of their licence. 
 
He further informed Members that there would be no objection to the 
conditions relating to Regulated Entertainment that were currently on the 
Premises Licence having effect. 
 
The legal representative of the Premises Licence Holder provided strong 
assurances that the Premises Licence Holder had recognised the seriousness 
of the reason the premises had been brought into review and informed 
Members that there would be significant improvement in the management of 
the premises in the future. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder and his legal representative responded to 
questions from Members of the Licensing Panel and the legal advisor to the 
Panel. 
 
In determining the review application, Members of the Licensing Panel had 
regard to the licensing objectives, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
and relevant guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Members of the Licensing Panel gave careful consideration to the 
representations made by Environmental Health, officers from the Licensing 
Authority and Ward Councillor, Alison Wright. 
 
In coming to their decision, Members of the Licensing Panel gave 
consideration to the representations made on behalf of the Premises Licence 
Holder by their legal representative and gave serious consideration to the fact 
that the premises had put forward measures which had been accepted by 
Environmental Health and the Licensing Authority and Ward Councillor Alison 
Wright, that would have an impact on preventing public nuisance being 
caused by music emanating from the premises. 
 
Resolved – 
  
(1) That in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, 

the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the application.  

 
(2) That the Conditions of the Premises Licence in respect of Wild Inn, 

Banks Road, West Kirby that relate to Regulated Entertainment 
shall become effective and that the conditions be modified as 
follows: 

 

Page 12



 Live and recorded music to cease no later than 10.30 pm 

 2 SIA registered door supervisors must be employed on Fridays, 
Saturdays and Bank Holidays from 9.00 pm until half an hour after 
the premises closes. 

 A noise limiter must be installed at the premises with the level set 
in agreement with Environmental Health. 

 Regular noise assessments must be carried out. This must 
involve listening outside the premises to ascertain whether the 
noise being emitted is at a level which may disturb neighbours 
and if required take any necessary remedial action.  A written 
record of the noise assessments must be maintained by the 
premises and made available to an Authorised Officer upon 
request. 

 Customers must not be permitted to take drinks into the outside 
area at the front of the premises beyond 9.30 pm 

 Double or secondary glazing must be fitted in the bi fold doors at 
the front of the premises. 

 A vestibule must be installed inside the front door entrance to the 
premises 

 
(3) That the undertaking given by the Premises Licence Holder that 

there would be no live music at the premises until the work to 
install double/secondary glazing and create a vestibule was 
completed be noted and that this work must be completed no later 
than 31 July 2022. 

 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



LICENSING PANEL 
 

Thursday, 23 June 2022 
 

Present:    

 Councillors D Burgess-Joyce 
C O'Hagan 
S Williams 
 

 

 
7 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  

 
Resolved – That Councillor D Burgess-Joyce be appointed Chair for this 
meeting. 
 

8 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest.  
 
No such declarations were made. 
 

9 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF 
THE LICENSING ACT 2003 - HESWALL ROYAL BRITISH LEGION, 78 
PENSBY ROAD, HESWALL  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application that had 
been received from Heswall Royal British Legion Club Limited for a Premises 
Licence in respect of Heswall Royal British Legion, 78 Pensby Road, Heswall. 
  
It was reported that the premises currently have a Club Premises Certificate 
which permitted the hours outlined within the report.  The hours applied for the 
Premises Licence were set out within the report.   
  
The applicant had submitted an operating schedule setting out how the 
business would be conducted/managed in accordance with the four licensing 
objectives. A copy of the full application was available. Members were 
advised that the proposals set out in the operating schedule may become 
conditions of the licence should the application be granted and that following 
discussions with Merseyside Police the applicant had agreed that in addition 
to the proposed conditions set out in the operating schedule, they would be 
content to have a number of conditions as outlined within the report placed on 
the Premises Licence should the application be granted. 
 
In respect of the application ten representations had been received from local 
residents.  The representations related to noise nuisance from entertainment 

Public Document Pack

Page 15



coming from the premises and nuisance caused by customers leaving the 
premises at a late hour which residents advised was currently a problem.  
Copies of the representations were available. 
 
The applicant attended the meeting together with the Chairman of the Heswall 
Royal British Legion Club.   
 
Ward Councillor Andrew Hodson attended the meeting together with two local 
residents. 
 
The Licensing Manager confirmed that all documentation had been sent and 
received and that authorisation had been received for Councillor A Hodson to 
speak on behalf of local residents. 
 
The Licensing Manager outlined the report.     
 
The Chairman of the Heswall Royal British Legion advised Members of the 
Licensing Panel that the purpose of the application was to enable the Club to 
survive by being open to the public and the reason for the request for the 
change in hours was not to increase the availability of alcohol but to allow 
more time for the premises to manage people leaving at the end of the night.  
He explained that he believed a later hour would allow customers to leave 
gradually and remain on the premises whilst waiting for taxis which it was 
considered would prevent them from causing disturbance to local residents. 
 
Members were informed that the premises currently has a Club Premises 
Certificate that restricts the use of the premises to members of the club and 
their guests.  The Chairman of the Club advised that he had recently been 
appointed as the new Chairman and he provided details of how the premises 
intended to operate under the new chairmanship. 
 
The Chairman reported that there was a noise limiter installed both inside the 
building and in the outside area of the premises, however he acknowledged 
that it was necessary to review the operation of the limiter in the outside area.  
He informed Members that the premises intended to invest £2,600 to replace 
doors at the premises which would operate effectively to prevent noise 
escaping from the building.   He further informed the Panel that the premises 
had been carrying out regular checks in respect of noise emanating from the 
premises and emphasised that the Club have a strict no drugs policy in place.  
The Chairman and the applicant advised the Panel that the Club wished to be 
a good neighbour and would be willing to implement appropriate measures to 
mitigate the impact of the Club on local residents.  It was made clear that the 
Club would be willing to meet with local residents on a regular basis. 
 
The Chairman of the Club and the applicant responded to questions from 
Ward Councillor, Andrew Hodson, local residents and the Members of the 
Licensing Panel and the Legal Advisor to the Panel. 

Page 16



 
The Licensing Manager confirmed the current conditions on the Club 
Premises Certificate. 
 
Ward Councillor, Andrew Hodson addressed the Licensing Panel and advised 
that he was representing a number of residents who had made 
representations in respect of the application.  Councillor Hodson advised that 
the representations related specifically to the prevention of public nuisance 
and the protection of children from harm.  He informed the Members of the 
Licensing Panel that residents were not opposed to the British Legion 
operating, however, they wanted it to do so in a way that did not cause a 
disturbance to local neighbours. 
 
Councillor Hodson informed the Panel that he had been approached by a 
number of residents last year regarding the disturbance that was being 
caused at that time by the way in which the premises were being managed.  
He advised that following the intervention of a Licensing Enforcement Officer, 
some improvements had been made, however problems had reoccurred in 
the last few months.  Councillor Hodson was pleased to hear that it had been 
acknowledged by the Club that an increase in staff was required to manage 
the premises effectively, however, he informed Members that the main 
concern for local residents was the later time that the premises wished to 
operate until and the fact that the premises would operate without any 
restrictions to membership as well as music emanating from the premises. 
 
The residents in attendance advised that they believed appropriate conditions 
would be necessary to ensure the Club would operate in such a way as to not 
cause a disturbance to local residents and that meeting with the Club on a 
regular basis would be necessary in the future.  They also expressed 
concerns in respect of customers migrating to the bowling green late at night. 
 
In response to concerns from local residents that the granting of a Premises 
Licence would remove some control from management in respect of the 
behaviour of customers, the premises advised that they would continue to 
offer a membership which would entitle members to reduced prices which 
they considered would encourage customers to become members.  Members 
of the Licensing Panel were further advised that the premises could refuse 
entry to anyone in a similar way that other licensed premises operate.  It was 
stated that the Club intended to increase the number of staff employed so as 
to better manage the premises and prevent residents being disturbed by noise 
and customers, in particular, customers leaving the premises at the end of the 
night. 
 
It was acknowledged by the premises that they could work closely with 
Environmental Health to determine appropriate levels for the noise limiters to 
operate and receive further guidance in terms of noise management.   It was 

Page 17



further acknowledged that measures needed to be put in place to prevent 
customers migrating to the bowling green late at night. 
 
In determining the application Members of the Licensing Panel had regard to 
the Licensing Objectives, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the 
Statutory Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
In determining the application, Members considered the representations from 
local residents in respect of noise nuisance caused to them by noise escaping 
from the premises, customers leaving the premises at a late hour and 
customers congregating outside causing noise disturbance.  Members had 
regard to the submissions made by the applicant and their willingness to 
address the concerns raised by local residents and the measures they would 
be willing to put in place to prevent the operation of the premises causing 
disturbance to local residents, which included effective management to 
prevent customers migrating to areas adjacent to local residents late at night. 
 
Members also took into account Section 11 of the Guidance in respect of the 
review mechanism provided by the Licensing Act 2003 when problems 
associated with the Licensing Objectives occur after the grant of a Premises 
Licence. 
 
Resolved – 
  
(1)   That in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
application.  

(2)  That the application for a Premises Licence in respect of Heswall 
Royal British Legion Club, 78 Pensby Road, Heswall, be granted with the 
following hours: 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol (Consumption On and Off the premises) 
 
Sunday to Saturday  10:00 to 23:30 
 
Performance of Plays 
 
Sunday to Saturday  08:00 to 23:00 
 
Indoor Sporting Events 
 
Sunday to Saturday  09:00 to 23:30 
 
Boxing and Wrestling Entertainment 
 
Sunday to Saturday  08:00 to 23:30 

Page 18



 
Live Music 
 
Sunday to Saturday  12:00 to 23:30 
 
Recorded Music and Performance of Dance 
 
Sunday to Saturday  09:00 to 23:30 
 
Anything of a Similar Description to Live Music, Recorded Music and 
Performance of Dance 
 
Sunday to Saturday  10:00 to 23:30 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 
Sunday to Saturday  23:00 to 23:30 
 
Hours Open to the Public 
 
Sunday to Saturday  08:00 to 00:00 
 
Non-Standard Timings 
Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, New Years Eve, New Years Day and 
Bank Holiday Weekends: 
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol until 01:30 
Recorded Music until 01:30 
Hours Open to the Public until 02:00 
 
(3) That in addition to the appropriate conditions proposed in the 
operating schedule and the conditions agreed with Merseyside Police, 
the following conditions be placed on the Premises Licence: 
 

 Noise limiters must operate at the premises to control music levels 

both inside the fabric of the building and in the outside areas of 

the premises.  The decibel levels for the noise limiters must be set 

in agreement with Environmental Health. 

 Regular noise assessments must be carried out. This must involve 

listening outside the premises to ascertain whether the noise 

being emitted is at a level which may disturb neighbours and if 

required take any necessary remedial action.  A written record 

must be made of the assessments in a log book kept for that 

purpose and shall include, the time and date of the checks, the 

person making them and the results including any remedial action.  

Page 19



This log book must be made available to an Authorised Officer 

upon request. 

 All external doors and windows must be kept closed when 

entertainment is being provided and in any event by 22:00, except 

in the event of an emergency and to permit access to or egress 

from the premises. 

 There must be placed at all exits from the premises in a place 

where they can be seen and easily read by the public, notices 

requiring customers to leave the area quietly. 

 Bottles or broken glasses must not be disposed of from the 

premises between the hours of 21:00 and 09:00 so as not to cause 

a disturbance to residents in the vicinity of the premises. 

 The double doors at the front and rear of the Concert Room, and 

the double doors in the Lounge Room, next to the Bowling Green, 

must include an audible alarm and a visual identification on the 

control panel to alert a member of staff that the doors had been 

opened, in order that prompt action can be taken to close the door 

to prevent public nuisance being caused. 

 The premises must maintain an incident log that includes the 

recording of complaints made regarding noise emanating from the 

premises. 

 An incident book must be maintained to record any activity of a 

violent, criminal or antisocial nature, or complaints made 

regarding the operation of the premises. The record must contain 

the time and date, the nature of the incident/complaint, the people 

involved, the action taken and details of the person responsible for 

the management of the premises at the time of the 

incident/complaint. The incident book must be reviewed by a 

Senior Officer of the Club on a weekly basis. A record of the review 

must be clearly recorded. The incident book must be available for 

inspection at all reasonable times by an Authorised Officer. The 

records must be retained for at least 12 months. 

 
 

Page 20



LICENSING PANEL 
 

Thursday, 11 August 2022 
 

Present:   

 Councillors D Burgess-Joyce 
C Cooke 
D Mitchell 
 

 

 
10 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  

 
Resolved – That Councillor David Burgess-Joyce be appointed Chair for 
this meeting. 
 

11 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest.  
 
No such declarations were made. 
 

12 APPLICATION TO REVIEW A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 - PLATINUM BAR, CONWAY 
STREET, BIRKENHEAD, CH41 6JD  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application that had 
been received from Merseyside Police for a Review of a Premises Licence in 
respect of Platinum Bar, Conway Street, Birkenhead, under the provisions of 
the Licensing Act 2003.   
 
The Licensing Manager outlined the report and advised that the Licensing 
Panel may, having regard to the application for the Review and any relevant 
representations, take such of the following steps as it considered appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives: 
 

 To modify the Conditions of the Licence 

 Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the Licence 

 Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor 

 Suspend the Licence for a period not exceeding three months; or 

 Revoke the Licence 
 
Members were informed that the Licensing Authority may decide that no 
action would be appropriate if it found that the review did not require it to take 
any steps that were appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 21



It was reported that the premises currently hold a Premises Licence allowing 
the licensable activities as set out within the report.  
 
The Licensing Panel were informed that following a Summary Review in 
November 2021 the Premises Licence had been suspended with immediate 
effect on 5 November 2021 as an interim step to prevent any further serious 
crime and disorder occurring at the premises.  It was further reported that 
upon consideration of the review of the Premises Licence on 26 November 
2021, the Licensing Panel had determined that the suspension of the 
Premises Licence be lifted and that the Premises Licence be modified as 
outlined within the report. 
 
It was reported that this application to review the Premises Licence had been 
initiated by Merseyside Police due to further incidents of violence occurring at 
the premises since the determination of the Summary Review on 26 
November 2021, Merseyside Police also had concerns in respect of the 
management’s control of the premises.  It was reported that Merseyside 
Police considered that the occurrence of these incidents was undermining the 
licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety and 
the prevention of public nuisance. 
 
In respect of the review application, a representation had been received from 
the Licensing Authority who supported the application to review the Premises 
Licence by Merseyside Police due to a number of concerns relating to the 
premises, including breaches of the Premises Licence conditions.  A copy of 
the representation was available. 
 
Merseyside Police were represented at the Hearing by a Licensing Officer and 
a Police Constable. 
 
The Designated Premises Supervisor attended the meeting together with a 
Licensing Consultant and a prospective Designated Premises 
Supervisor/General Manager. 
 
Merseyside Police requested the submission of still images of CCTV footage 
from the premises.  The Licensing Panel were made aware that Merseyside 
Police had provided the opportunity to the Premises Licence Holder to view 
their own CCTV images from which the still images had been obtained. 
Authorisation for this submission was sought from the Premises Licence 
Holder and his representative. Following some discussion, it was accepted 
that the still images could be submitted. 
 
The Licensing Manager confirmed that all documentation had been sent and 
received. 
 
The Police Licensing Officer advised that herself and the Police Constable 
were in attendance to represent Merseyside Police who had submitted the 

Page 22



Review application.  The Officer referred to the fact that in November 2021 
Merseyside Police had instigated a Summary Review of the Premises Licence 
following serious disorder at the premises. The Licensing Panel were advised 
that as a consequence of the review further conditions were imposed on the 
Premises Licence.  Merseyside Police reported that since that review hearing 
they had received a number of reports of violence at the premises and had 
identified breaches of the conditions imposed on the Premises Licence 
following the Summary Review. It was submitted that there was a lack of 
control at the premises. 
 
The Police Licensing Officer referred to the determination notice of 26 
November 2021 which set out details of why the premises had been brought 
to a Summary Review and included the conditions placed upon the Premises 
Licence by the Licensing Panel.  Merseyside Police advised that most of 
these conditions had not been adhered to.  The breaches related to patrons 
being allowed to enter the premises wearing tracksuits and sports shorts, 
knife wands not being used in accordance with the Premises Licence 
condition, door staff not wearing body cameras and not carrying out random 
and frequent searches to detect drugs or weapons being brought into the 
premises and not recording incidents of disorder. 
 
The Police Licensing Officer referred to a meeting which took place on 28 
April 2022 between a Police Inspector, a Licensing Sergeant, Licensing 
Constable, Wirral Council and the Designated Premises Supervisor. The 
Licensing Panel were advised that this meeting had been arranged following 
an incident when door staff had permitted access to males wearing tracksuits, 
in contravention of a condition of the Premises Licence and who went on to 
cause disorder in the premises. The Police Officer reported that the males 
had been refused entry by the Designated Premises Supervisor but 
subsequently allowed entry by the door staff, a matter which it was reported 
raised concerns that the door staff believed they had greater authority than 
the Premises Licence Holder.  It was also reported to the Licensing Panel that 
it was a cause for concern that the disorder in the premises had not been 
reported to Merseyside Police or recorded in an incident book.  The Licensing 
Panel were informed that following this incident a decision was made to place 
the premises on a silver referral for 8 weeks to provide support and guidance 
to help overcome any issues that may be preventing the Premises Licence 
Holder operating the premises in an appropriate manner. 
 
The Police Licensing Officer referred to minutes of a further meeting that took 
place on 21 June 2022 which was attended by Merseyside Police, Wirral 
Council, the Premises Licence Holder and his Licensing Agent. The Licensing 
Panel were advised that the meeting had been arranged due to a number of 
incidents at the premises and continued breaches of the conditions of the 
Premises Licence which included no body cameras being worn, knife wands 
not being used and individuals wearing tracksuits being allowed entry to the 
premises.  Merseyside Police reported that it was at this meeting that the 

Page 23



Premises Licence Holder admitted he had only recently purchased body 
cameras and that they were not being used. A number of incidents of crime 
and disorder that had occurred at the premises were discussed at this 
meeting. 
 
The Police Licensing Officer referred to the statement provided by the Police 
Inspector which outlined concerns regarding the severity of violent incidents at 
the premises, poor management of the premises and under reporting from 
door staff.  Details of the incidents reported in the statement were outlined to 
Members of the Licensing Panel. It was explained that following the meeting 
that took place on 28 April 2022, the premises were placed on Silver which 
instigated officers being tasked with undertaking regular visits and walk 
throughs of the premises in a supportive capacity. It was reported that during 
subsequent visits to the premises further breaches of licence conditions were 
identified and there were further incidents of violence at the premises and in 
the vicinity of the premises which resulted in another meeting taking place on 
21 June 2022. 
 
The Police Licensing Officer reported that the Police Inspector considered that 
the premises was not being managed in a safe manner.  The concerns 
included violent incidents at the premises, sightings of OCG members in the 
premises, breaches of conditions of the Premises Licence and the necessity 
for persistent Police attendance at the premises.  It was reported that the 
Inspector therefore believed there was no other option but to review the 
Premises Licence and for Members of the Licensing Panel to consider the 
revocation of the Premises Licence with reference to Sections 11.18, 11.23 
and 11.28 of the Statutory Guidance.  It was submitted that the Premises 
Licence Holder/Designated Premises Supervisor had failed to promote the 
licensing objectives and had shown little regard to the conditions imposed.  It 
was therefore believed it was pointless adding extra conditions and the 
removal of the Designated Premises Supervisor would not change anything 
as he is the Premises Licence Holder.   
 
CCTV still images were provided to Members of the Licensing Panel, the 
content of which were explained by the Police Licensing Officer. 
 
The Police Licensing Officer and Police Constable responded to questions 
from the Licensing Consultant representing the Premises Licence Holder who 
challenged a number of the submissions made by Merseyside Police, these 
included the number of conditions that had been breached, the clothes worn 
by customers of the premises, the use of knife wands and the sighting of OCG 
members in the premises and the nature of the incidents at the premises.  
Merseyside Police also responded to questions from Members of the 
Licensing Panel and the legal advisor to the Licensing Panel. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder responded to questions from Members of the 
Licensing Panel and the legal advisor to the Licensing Panel. 

Page 24



 
Further to reference to breaches of the licence conditions, the Licensing 
Consultant submitted on behalf of the Premises Licence Holder that the 
majority of licence conditions had been complied with.  He also submitted that 
Merseyside Police had provided limited evidence that knife wands were not 
being used and that individuals wearing tracksuits had been allowed entry into 
the premises.  The Licensing Consultant conceded that body worn cameras 
had not been worn by door supervisors as the Premises Licence Holder could 
not afford to purchase them initially but they had now been purchased. 
 
The Licensing Consultant representing the Premises Licence Holder also 
challenged reference being made to members of organised criminal gangs 
being allowed entry into the premises and submitted that there was no 
evidence to support this allegation.  In response, Merseyside Police advised 
the Licensing Panel that the Police Inspector is privy to intelligence that they 
did not have but did not consider that the reference in the statement would 
have been made without any reason to do so. 
 
The prospective Designated Premises Supervisor of the premises addressed 
the Members of the Licensing Panel and advised that he had twelve years’ 
experience working in licensed premises and that he was currently the 
Designated Premises Supervisor at a chain of restaurant/cocktail bars located 
in Chester, Manchester and Liverpool. 
 
The prospective Designated Premises Supervisor responded to questions 
from Members of the Licensing Panel and the legal advisor to the Licensing 
Panel. 
 
The Licensing Consultant accepted on behalf of the Premises Licence Holder 
that the management of the premises required improvement.  It was proposed 
that the Designated Premises Supervisor would be replaced and that the 
concerns of Merseyside Police could be addressed through better 
management of the premises and through a support programme provided by 
himself. This support would include risk assessments, undertaking a health 
check of the operation of the premises, training of staff, record keeping and 
liaison with Merseyside Police.  The Licensing Consultant therefore did not 
believe there was cause for revocation of the Premises Licence and advised 
that it was his belief the premises would not be brought back into review 
further to his involvement. 
 
In determining the Review application Members had regard to the licensing 
objectives, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and relevant guidance 
issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and also gave 
consideration to the application made by Merseyside Police, the supporting 
representation made by the Licensing Authority and the submissions made on 
behalf of the Premises Licence Holder. 
 

Page 25



The Licensing Panel had regard to the fact that Merseyside Police had found 
it necessary to apply for a Review of the Premises Licence following a 
Summary Review which had been undertaken in November 2021 and 
following the premises being placed on the licensing matrix at a silver 
response level in April 2022 due to concerns regarding the operation of the 
premises. In considering these matters the Licensing Panel had regard to 
paragraph 11.18 of the Statutory Guidance issued under the Licensing Act 
2003. 
 
In coming to their decision, the Licensing Panel had regard to the evidence 
presented by Merseyside Police relating to incidents of violence at the 
premises and breaches of licence conditions put in place to prevent crime and 
disorder at the premises. They also had regard to the submissions made on 
behalf of the Premises Licence Holder and the Statutory Guidance, in 
particular, paragraphs 11.18, 11.22 and 11.23. The Licensing Panel noted 
that the application had been supported by the Licensing Authority who had 
engaged in joint meetings with Merseyside Police and the Premises Licence 
Holder and their representatives. 
 
Members of the Licensing Panel had particular regard to the fact that 
Merseyside Police had found it necessary to Review the Premises Licence 
following a Summary Review of the Premises Licence in November 2021. It 
was of concern to the Licensing Panel that despite significant intervention 
from Merseyside Police to support the operation of the premises in 
accordance with the licensing objectives, through meetings and high profile 
visits, incidents of violence continued to occur in the premises and licence 
conditions were persistently being breached.  
 
Resolved –  
 
(1) That in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, 

the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the application.  
 

(2) That the Premises Licence in respect of Platinum Bar, Conway 
Street, Birkenhead be revoked. 

 
 
 

Page 26



LICENSING PANEL 
 

Friday, 16 September 2022 
 

Present:   

 Councillors A Hodson 
D Burgess-Joyce 
K Greaney 
 

 

 
13 SILENT TRIBUTE TO HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN  

 
Following the sad announcement of the death of Her Majesty the Queen, 
Members stood in silent tribute for 2 minutes. 
 

14 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  
 
Resolved – That Councillor Andrew Hodson be appointed Chair for this 
meeting. 
 

15 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest.  
 
No such declarations were made. 
 

16 APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 - PERCH ROCK HOTEL, 7 
GROSVENOR ROAD, NEW BRIGHTON  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application that had 
been received from The Craft Union Pub Company Limited to vary a Premises 
Licence in respect of Perch Rock Hotel, 7 Grosvenor Road, New Brighton. 
  
It was reported that the premises currently have a Premises Licence which 
permitted the hours outlined within the report.  The hours applied to vary the 
Premises Licence were set out within the report.   
  
The applicant had submitted an operating schedule setting out how the 
business would be conducted/managed in accordance with the four licensing 
objectives. A copy of the full application was available. Members were 
advised that the proposals set out in the operating schedule may become 
conditions of the licence should the application be granted. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 27



In respect of the application a representation had been received from a local 
resident.  The representation related to public nuisance being caused to 
residents by customers outside the premises which the resident advised was 
currently a problem.  The local resident considered that should the application 
be granted for later hours then public nuisance could be exacerbated.  A copy 
of the representation was available. 
 
The applicant attended the meeting together with his legal representative.  
The local resident who had made a representation was also in attendance.   
 
The Licensing Manager confirmed that all documentation had been sent and 
received. 
 
The Licensing Manager outlined the report and in response to the Chair 
clarified that the hours requested to vary the Premises Licence were for 
Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
The applicant’s legal representative reported that the company has extensive 
experience in operating licensed premises.  He advised that these premises 
were a community pub and he reported that there had been no history of 
complaints and that strong management was in place.  He advised Members 
that prior to submitting the application, the premises had contacted 
Merseyside Police and as a consequence agreed to a number of additional 
conditions being added to the Premises Licence should the variation be 
granted.  He referred to the fact that only one representation had been made 
despite many residents being in close proximity to the premises and that no 
representations had been made by any of the Responsible Authorities, in 
particular Merseyside Police or Environmental Health.   
 
In response to questions, the applicant’s legal representative informed 
Members that there was no intention to change the demographic of customers 
attending the premises and that this would be controlled through door 
supervisors and strong management at the premises.  He submitted that later 
hours would allow dispersal to take place from the premises over a longer 
period of time. 
 
The applicant’s representative provided details of the proposed conditions to 
be added to the Premises Licence which included CCTV, a Challenge 25 
Policy, staff training, a refusals register and incident log and door supervisors. 
 
The applicant’s legal representative and the applicant responded to questions 
from the local resident, the Members of the Licensing Panel and the Legal 
Advisor to the Panel. 
 
The local resident in attendance raised concerns in respect of customers of 
other premises migrating to these premises at a late hour and advised that he 
had witnessed people sitting outside the premises at 1.30 am drinking and 

Page 28



that no attempt had been made to prevent this from happening by the 
premises.  He also stated that he had witnessed customers smoking and 
drinking outside of the premises which had caused him to be disturbed by 
customers at that time as well as when customers were leaving the premises 
in the early hours of the morning. 
 
In response to questions from Members of the Panel, and the legal advisor to 
the Panel, the local resident advised Members that his main concern was 
noise disturbance he had experienced coming from outside the premises and 
when people were leaving the premises which could be addressed if the 
premises were managed so that customers were not allowed to drink outside 
the premises beyond their permitted hours of 9.00 pm and if door supervisors 
managed the dispersal of customers at closing time. 
 
In determining the application Members of the Licensing Panel had regard to 
the Licensing Objectives, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the 
Statutory Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
In coming to their decision, Members gave consideration to the submissions 
made by the applicant’s legal representative, in particular that there was no 
intention to change the demographic of customers attending the premises.  
Members of the Panel had regard to the conditions agreed with Merseyside 
Police. 
 
In determining the application Members gave consideration to the 
representation made by the local resident however Members had to have 
regard to the statutory guidance issued under the Licensing Act 2003 that 
their decision must be evidenced based. 
 
In determining the application Members also had regard to the fact that there 
were no representations from any of the Responsible Authorities, in particular 
Merseyside Police and Environmental Health. 
 
Members also took into account Section 11 of the Guidance in respect of the 
review mechanism provided by the Licensing Act 2003 when problems 
associated with the Licensing Objectives occur after the grant of a Premises 
Licence. 
 
Resolved – 
  
(1)   That in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
application.  

(2)  That the application to vary a Premises Licence in respect of Perch 
Rock Hotel, 7 Grosvenor Road, New Brighton, be granted with the 
following hours: 

Page 29



Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 
Sunday to Thursday  10:00 to 00:30 
Friday and Saturday  10:00 to 03:00 
 
Performance of Dance, Exhibition of Films, Indoor Sporting Events, 
Performance of Dance, Live Music and Anything of a Similar Description 
 
Sunday to Thursday  10:00 to 23:30 
Friday and Saturday  10:00 to 00:00 
 
Recorded Music 
 
Sunday to Thursday  10:00 to 23:30 
Friday and Saturday  10:00 to 03:00 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 
Sunday to Thursday  23:00 to 00:30 
Friday and Saturday  23:00 to 03:00 
 
Hours Open to the Public 
 
Sunday to Thursday  10:00 to 01:00 
Friday and Saturday  10:00 to 03:30 
 
(3) That in addition to the appropriate conditions proposed in the 
operating schedule, the following conditions be placed on the Premises 
Licence: 
 

 A minimum of two SIA registered doorstaff must be employed at 
the premises on a Friday and Saturday from 9.00 pm until 4.00 am 
or until all customers have left the vicinity of the premises. 

 No drinks to be taken outside the fabric of the building beyond 
9.00 pm. 

 The outside seating area must be regularly monitored to prevent 
noise nuisance being caused to local residents and a log 
maintained of the monitoring. 

 The outside seating area must be closed and clear of all 
customers by 9.00 pm. 

 
 

Page 30



LICENSING PANEL 
 

Friday, 23 September 2022 
 

Present:    

 Councillors S Bennett 
D Burgess-Joyce 
C O'Hagan 
 

 

17 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  
 
Resolved – That Councillor D Burgess-Joyce be appointed Chair for this 
meeting. 
 

18 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members of the Panel were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non pecuniary interests in connection with any application on the agenda and 
state the nature of the interest.  
 
No such declarations were made. 
 

19 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF 
THE LICENSING ACT 2003 - MYKONOS CAFE BAR, 710 BOROUGH 
ROAD, BIRKENHEAD  
 
The Director of Law and Governance reported upon an application that had 
been received from Albano Pelivani for a Premises Licence in respect of 
Mykonos Café Bar, 710 Borough Road, Birkenhead. 
  
It was reported that the premises do not currently have a Premises Licence.  
The hours applied for the Premises Licence were set out within the report.   
  
The applicant had submitted an operating schedule setting out how the 
business would be conducted/managed in accordance with the four licensing 
objectives. A copy of the full application was available. Members were 
advised that the proposals set out in the operating schedule may become 
conditions of the licence should the application be granted. 
 
In respect of the application a representation had been received from a local 
resident.  The representation related to concerns that anti-social behaviour 
would increase should the application be granted due to customers leaving 
the premises late at night causing a nuisance which the resident had indicated 
was currently a problem with other nearby premises.  The resident also had 
concerns regarding the use of the outside area at the rear of the premises 
which could cause a nuisance to local residents.  A copy of the representation 
was available. 

Public Document Pack

Page 31



 
In response to the representation submitted by the local resident, the agent 
representing the applicant had written to the resident outlining how the 
premises would be operated should the application by granted and a copy of 
the letter was available. 
 
The applicant attended the meeting together with his agent.  The Licensing 
Manager advised Members that the local resident who had made the 
representation was unable to attend. 
 
The Licensing Manager confirmed that all documentation had been sent and 
received. 
 
The Licensing Manager outlined the report.     
 
The applicant’s agent informed Members of the Panel that the applicant had 
invested significantly in the premises by refurbishing the site to become a new 
cafe bar/diner.  He advised that the operating model of the business was that 
it would be food led selling a range of Greek food for customers to 
predominantly consume on site and also providing snacks, breakfasts, 
coffees, soft drinks and a small offering of alcohol.  Members were informed 
that there would also be a takeaway and delivery service, however, no alcohol 
would be sold as part of the takeaway service and the application for off sales 
was to supply alcohol as part of a delivery service. 
 
The applicant’s agent advised that the maximum occupancy of the premises 
was for 20 customers inside and approximately 16 outside.   He provided 
Members of the Panel with details of the proposed conditions to be added to 
the Premises Licence which included CCTV, a Challenge 25 Policy, staff 
training, a refusals register and an incident log. 
 
Members gave consideration to the written representation which outlined 
concerns that anti-social behaviour may increase in the area should the 
application be granted as he submitted that there are already problems with 
late night drinkers causing a nuisance at closing times of other establishments 
within close proximity to these premises.  He had also expressed concerns 
regarding the use of the outside area at the rear of the premises which could 
cause a nuisance to local residents. 
 
In response to concerns in respect of the use of the outside area, the 
applicant advised that he would be content for a condition to be placed on the 
Premises Licence restricting the use of this area to 10.00 pm. 
 
In determining the application Members of the Licensing Panel had regard to 
the Licensing Objectives, the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the 
Statutory Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

Page 32



In coming to their decision Members gave consideration to the submissions 
made by the applicant’s agent, in particular that the business would be food 
led.  Members gave consideration to the written representation made by a 
local resident, however Members had to have regard to the statutory guidance 
issued under the Licensing Act 2003 that the decision of the Licensing Panel 
must be evidenced based. 
 
In determining the application Members also had regard to the fact that there 
were no representations from any of the Responsible Authorities, in particular 
Merseyside Police.   
 
Members also took into account Section 11 of the Guidance in respect of the 
review mechanism provided by the Licensing Act 2003 when problems 
associated with the Licensing Objectives occur after the grant of a Premises 
Licence. 
  
Resolved – 
  
(1)   That in accordance with Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003, 
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
application.  

(2)  That the application for a Premises Licence in respect of Mykonos 
Café Bar, 710 Borough Road, Birkenhead, be granted with the following 
hours: 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol (consumption ‘on’ and ‘off’ the premises) 
 
Sunday to Saturday 11:00 to 23:00 
 
Recorded Music 
 
Sunday to Saturday 08:00 to 23:00 
 
Hours open to the Public 
 
Sunday to Saturday  08:00 to 23:15 
 
Non-Standard Timings 
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol (consumption ‘on’ and ‘off’ the premises) 
 
Bank Holidays  11:00 to 00:00 
Christmas Eve  11:00 to 00:00 
New Year’s Eve  11:00 to 00:00 
 
Recorded Music 

Page 33



 
Bank Holidays  08:00 to 00:00 
Christmas Eve  08:00 to 00:00 
New Year’s Eve  08:00 to 00:00 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 
Bank Holidays  23:00 to 00:00 
Christmas Eve  23:00 to 00:00 
New Year’s Eve  23:00 to 00:00 
 
Hours Open to the Public 
 
Bank Holidays  11:00 to 00:15 
Christmas Eve  11:00 to 00:15 
New Year’s Eve  11:00 to 00:15 
 
(3) That in addition to the conditions submitted as part of the 
application, the following condition be placed on the Premises Licence: 

 The outside area must be cleared of all customers by 10.00 pm. 

 
 

Page 34



 

          

 

LICENSING ACT COMMITTEE 
 
 16 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

REPORT TITLE CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT REVIEW 
 

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES AND DEPUTY MONITORING 
OFFICER 

 
 

REPORT SUMMARY 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with consultation feedback on the 
cumulative impact assessment which is contained within the Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy, and to ask the Committee to make a recommendation to Council as to 
whether there is evidence that it is necessary to continue to include a cumulative impact 
assessment within the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
The Wirral Plan sets out a number of priorities for the council to consider and the contents 
of this report supports the priority of working for a prosperous, inclusive economy – helping 
businesses to thrive and creating jobs and opportunities for all. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee: 
 

1. Determine whether there remains evidence that the number or density of premises 

selling alcohol, for consumption off the premises, in the area of Birkenhead 

identified within the current Statement of Licensing Policy attached at Appendix 1 to 

this report, is having a cumulative impact and leading to problems in the area which 

are undermining the licensing objectives. 

 

2. Make a recommendation to Council that the Licensing Authority either remains of 

the opinion that it is necessary to continue to include a cumulative impact 

assessment within the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy or that it is no longer 

necessary and that the Statement of Licensing Policy should be amended 

accordingly.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



 

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 
 

1.1 It is a statutory requirement for the Licensing Authority to review any cumulative 
impact assessment at least every three years.  The Committee is asked to make a 
recommendation to Council as the approval of the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy and any amendments to the policy, including reference to a cumulative 
impact assessment, are functions of the Council and cannot be delegated to this 
committee. 
  

2.0  OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

2.1 That the Committee makes no recommendation to Council and the matter be 
reported direct to Council for determination. It is however, considered best practice 
for this Committee to give appropriate scrutiny to evidence as to whether there 
should remain in place a cumulative impact assessment within the Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy and provide Council with a recommendation based 
upon their findings. 

 
3.0  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

3.1 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy was first published in January 2005.  
The policy has since been subject to four reviews and the last full review of the 
policy was in December 2019.  

 
3.2 In January 2017, Merseyside Police requested the Licensing Authority consider 

adopting a Special Cumulative Impact Policy for an area within Birkenhead.  The 
request was made due to the level of crime and disorder, public nuisance, littering, 
street drinking, under-age drinking and anti-social behaviour believed to be resulting 
in part from the number of off-licence premises located in the area.  The request 
was supported by Ward Councillors. 

 
3.3 A comprehensive consultation process was undertaken about the possibility of 

introducing a Special Cumulative Impact Policy for Charing Cross, Grange Road 
West, Grange Mount, Oxton Road and the boundary of the Town Centre. Upon 
examining the responses received through the consultation the Licensing Authority 
was satisfied that there was evidence that the number of premises in Charing 
Cross, Grange Road West, Grange Mount, Oxton Road and the boundary of the 
Town Centre licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 for the sale by retail of alcohol 
for consumption off the premises were cumulatively giving rise to significant 
problems of public nuisance and crime and disorder. 

 
3.4 The Licensing Authority subsequently resolved to introduce a Special Cumulative 

Impact Policy limited to Charing Cross, Grange Road West, Grange Mount, Oxton 
Road and the boundary of the Town Centre with effect from 10 July 2017 to apply to 
Premises licensed for the sale by retail of alcohol for consumption off the premises 
only. 

 
3.5 It is a requirement of the Licensing Act 2003 that any cumulative impact 

assessment must be reviewed at least every three years. The last cumulative 
impact assessment was carried out in 2019 when the Statement of Licensing Policy 
was also being reviewed. It is therefore  necessary to review the current 
circumstances and determine whether there is evidence for the Statement of 
Licensing Policy to continue to include a cumulative impact assessment. 

 

Page 36



 

3.6 Statutory consultation has been undertaken regarding whether it remains necessary 
for the cumulative impact assessment to continue to be included in the Council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy. In response to the consultation, Merseyside Police 
have submitted a report which provides details of alcohol related crimes and anti 
social behaviour in and around the area of Birkenhead to which the cumulative 
impact assessment applies. The findings of Merseyside Police are attached at 
Appendix 2 to this report. It is the view of Merseyside Police that street drinking 
continues to be a major policing issue within the assessment area. Included in the 
report from Merseyside Police are the results of a survey that was undertaken with 
businesses in the area.  Thirty-Seven local businesses responded to the survey, 
some of which have provided details of the impact of street drinkers in the area.  A 
table showing the responses to the survey is attached at Appendix 3 to this report. 

 
3.7 A Police Officer who is currently responsible for policing Birkenhead Town Centre 

has submitted a statement within the report. This officer expresses concern that the 
adverse impact of street drinkers in the area would worsen if the area was no longer 
subject to a cumulative impact assessment.  

 
3.8 In response to the consultation a submission has also been made by a Licensing 

Consultant. This response is attached at Appendix 4 to this report. This submission 
expresses concern that the existence of a cumulative impact assessment preserves 
a ‘low status quo’ as well as ‘poor operating regimes’ and serves to deter 
applications from responsible operators. The Licensing Consultant also expresses 
concerns in respect of how applications are considered when they are made in an 
area that is subject to a cumulative impact assessment. It is the view of the 
Licensing Consultant that the cumulative impact assessment should not remain in 
place. 

 
3.9 Should the Committee recommend to Council that it is of the opinion that there 

continues to be evidence for the cumulative impact assessment to remain in place, 
the Licensing Authority is required to revise the cumulative impact assessment to 
include a statement to that effect and set out the evidence as to why it remains of 
that opinion. If the Licensing Authority is no longer of the view that the cumulative 
impact assessment should remain in place it must publish a statement to that effect. 

 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The consultation exercise was undertaken using existing staff resources.  
 
5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 It is a requirement of Section 5A of the Licensing Act 2003 for Licensing Authorities 

to review any cumulative impact assessment every three years. 
 
5.2      Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 states that ‘ Without prejudice to any 

other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the duty of each authority to which this 
section applies to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of 
the exercise of these functions on, and the need to do all it can to prevent 

             
(a) Crime and disorder in its area(including anti-social behaviour and other 

behaviour adversely affecting the local environment); 

(b) The misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its area and 

(c) Re offending in its area.  

 
Page 37



 

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS 
 

6.1 There are no such implications arising directly from this report. 
 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 

7.1 Should the Committee not make a recommendation to Council this could result in 
the Licensing Authority failing in its’ statutory duty to review the cumulative impact 
assessment within the required three year period.  
 

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION  

8.1 Statutory consultation has been undertaken in respect of the necessity for the 
Statement of Licensing Policy to continue to include a cumulative impact 
assessment. Details of consultees are provided at Appendix 5 to this report. 
Notification of the consultation was also published on the Council’s Website. The 
consultation took place between 18 July 2022 and 16 September 2022.  

 
9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 The potential impact has been reviewed and it is considered that there will be no 
 direct  impact of a cumulative impact assessment on any of the protected groups. 
 

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1 There are no such implications arising directly from this report. 
 
11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy sets out the principles to be applied to 
assist in the achievements of the following licensing objectives: 

 
 The prevention of crime and disorder  
 Public Safety  
 The prevention of public nuisance  
 The protection of children from harm  
 
         A cumulative impact assessment may be published by a Licensing Authority where 

there is evidence to show that the number or density of licensed premises in the 
area is having a cumulative impact leading to problems which are undermining the 
licensing objectives. 

 
  

 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Margaret O’Donnell 
  Licensing Manager 
  telephone: (0151) 691 8606 
  email:   margaretodonnell@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 

 

 

Page 38

mailto:margaretodonnell@wirral.gov.uk


 

APPENDICES 

Appendix 1  Statement of Licensing Policy 

Appendix 2  Merseyside Police Report 

Appendix 3  Table of responses to survey with businesses within the cumulative impact 

  assessment area 

Appendix 4  Response from Licensing Consultant 

Appendix 5  List of Consultees 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Licensing Act 2003 

Statutory Guidance issued under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
This report is being considered by the Licensing Act Committee in accordance with 
paragraph  9.2  of its Terms of Reference, which states that the  principal role of the 
Licensing Act Committee is to act as the administrative committee, acting under statutory 
delegation pursuant to the Licensing Act 2003, and responsible for making decisions as 
licensing authority under the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005. 
 

 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Licensing Act 2003 Committee 

 

Council 

 

25/07/2019 

13/11/2019 

09/12/2019 

 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



.

Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



29

Appendix C

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SEPTEMBER 10, 2022 

MERSEYSIDE POLICE 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 77



 

Special Cumulative Impact Policy: The effects of alcohol related 

incidents in and around the SCIP area 

 

This report has been created regarding the availability of alcohol in the Birkenhead town centre area 

and whether it is having an adverse effect on the number of reported alcohol related crimes and 

incidents. Statistical data at the start of the report has been obtained from Merseyside Police 

systems.    

The latter part of the report contains information from members of the public who reside and work 

in the area surrounding the proposed SCIP. Local residents and businesses were asked if they 

wanted to provide any comment regarding the impact of the availability of off licence sales of 

alcohol in the area.    

 

Alcohol Related Crime  

Violent Crime x181 (Last six months 22/02/2022 ‐ 22/08/2022) 
 

 

Page 78



Common examples of reported crimes. 
 

28/01/2022 

22000142995 

Two cousins have been out drinking when they have started to argue in the street. This has 

escalated to the point that one of them has pushed the other, causing no injury. 

10/03/2022 

22000170137 

Unknown male entered McDonalds and started hitting the protective screen with a walking stick, He 

then attempted to grab members of staff from under the screens. Offender was intoxicated at the 

time of the offence. 

12/03/2022 

22000172953 

AP has been with his partner walking home from a public house when he came across four females 

and one male. One of the females picked up glass from the floor and threw it to the floor causing it 

to smash. The ap asked for this female to pick the glass up due to it being unsafe which led to 

another female picking up a piece of the of glass and approached the ap whilst saying 'what about if 

I glass you' and threw the glass towards the ap, all parties walked in separate directions. No injury 

caused 

24/03/2022 

22000193216 

Drunk male causing issues at McDonalds being aggressive and trying to get over the counter male 

has then left as a friend has assisted and led him away. 

12/04/2022 

22000251198 

Offender has been seen drunk in street causing a disturbance shouting and swearing. Rendering an 

unknown victim to call the police. 

25/04/2022 

22000283478 

The victim has been walking with her friends when the suspect, who is clearly XXX has called her 

YOU'RE A P***K AND A KN*****D. 

07/05/2022 

22000312467 

Victim is employee in Pound Bakery, known shoplifter has entered the store xxx and attempted to 

steal items. Staff have tried to stop her and she has made threats to stab. Offender makes off prior 

to police arrival 

 

 

Page 79



09/05/2022 

22000317875 

Victim states that he has been drinking today in the town centre before socialising with street 

drinkers. Victim states that he had been made aware that he dropped his wallet and a member of 

public has handed him his wallet back and he claims that money and a bank card has gone missing 

from inside his wallet. 

21/05/2022 

22000350246 

Victim is a street drinker in town centre. Has admitted to patrols that he has been punched in the 

face on the grange road precinct area of Birkenhead town centre. Ip has a small cut to his mouth but 

confirms that he does not wish to make any formal complaint, he claims he doesn't know who hit 

him or why. 

23/05/2022 

22000355928 

Four males described as street drinkers seen by witness to be fighting in the street, one male seen to 

hit the victim on the head with a bottle, causing victim to fall down to floor. Both parties then seen 

to walk off in separate directions. Patrol has attended but been unable to locate any parties. 

27/05/2022 

22000365627 

Section 5 public order ‐ Circumstances being police called to an altercation on St Werburghs square, 

Birkenhead. Following report that a group of street drinkers had been fighting. On arrival officer 

speaks to security and pcso colleagues who had been monitoring situation on cctv throughout. It is 

alleged the d/p who is clearly intoxicated had begun an altercation with an unknown male and he 

was seen to be acting aggressively, throwing punches and drawing lots of attention from passers‐by. 

D/p's action likely to cause harassment alarm and distress to members of public. Situation still 

ongoing up to point when police arrive.  

31/05/2022 

22000375880 

Police were called by a member of the public who had witnessed male and female arguing. Security 

staff at the location confirmed an argument took place and that the female poured a can of alcohol 

over the male, before leaving the area. 

13/06/2022 

22000402938 

Informant reports unknown male is stood at the location, shouting and swearing and appears XXX. 

Informant states that as he walked past the male, the male took a swing at the informant. The 

suspect did not make contact with the informant. The suspect was unknown to the informant. No 

known CCTV or witnesses. 

 

 

Page 80



10/08/2022 

22000581898 

Female sighted staggering in middle of the road, shouting abuse and swearing, Female was 

intoxicated and spoken to by Police and warned as to her behaviour. Female then proceeded to 

verbally abuse the officer and calling him a C**T, P***K and a F****T before being arrested 

15/08/2022 

22000599848 

Police officers have located a drunk female in the street who was witnessed kicking an unmanned 

car in a car park and throwing a full can of alcohol at it ... Car has damage to rear passenger side 

door and a small scratch ‐ unknown whether it was already there or not 

18/08/2022 

22000608763 

Police called to Pyramids shopping centre following report of known male with CBO in the area 

causing Harassment alarm and distress to passers‐by. Male located and C&A for Breach of CBO, D&D 

and further arrested for criminal damage to police vehicle. 

Anti‐social behaviour Incidents x81 (Last six months 22/02/2022 ‐ 22/08/2022) 
 

 

 

 

Page 81



Common examples of reported behaviour 
 

11/03/2022 

Log MP‐20220311‐1091 

Infmt reporting group of 12 ‐ 15 females at al, ., ., aged approx 16, .., ., drinking xxx, "smoking drugs" 

and running across bus lanes, ., ., they are running wild, ., ., buses coming in and out of bus station, ,, 

., one wearing a green tracksuit ‐ 5ft slim build, ., ., all congregating in stand 6 of bus station, ., ., all 

in the bus station,  

There is a male and a female xxx who were sleeping in the bus station ‐ inft woke them up when the 

cleaner came along, ., the male is now getting aggressive and is now being "mouthy" 

 

09/05/2022 

Log MP‐20220509‐0125 

***Asb nuisance***, ., offender ‐ white male ‐ late 20's ‐ wearing bright orange t‐shirt black tracksuit 

bottoms, ., he looks xxx, ., throwing the bin at the a/l, ., he’s emptied all the recycling bin, ., he’s 

walking off towards Devonshire road, ., he is with a white female ‐ 40 y/o 

13/05/2022 

Log MP‐20220513‐0471 

ASB, drug users and alcoholics sat at the bottom of this street using the steps for a place to pick 

drugs up., ., the inft has never seen any police move them on., ., there is normally about 8 people 

here at anyone time, making the steps unusable for mop 

 

04/06/2022 

Log MP‐20220604‐1050 

*****Report of  7/10 drunk male/females*****, ., inf reporting there are approx. 7/10 people both 

male and female in the casino car park who are xxx, ., they are not being aggressive , however they 

are intimidating to the customers, ., they were arguing in the approx. 30‐45 minutes ago in the 

tunnel amongst each other ,, ., however they are still in the car park, ., inf states they are not doing 

anything specific , however inf believe its intimidating customers coming in especially the elderly, 

 

14/06/2022 

Log MP‐20220614‐1060 

** 4 males and 1 female causing a nuisance **, ., they are all drinking alcohol and begging passers 

by for money, ., inft states they are being loud and causing a general nuisance, ., 1 of the males 

wearing all black, another male had light t‐shirt on and tracksuit bottom dark in colour, ., this is 

being seen on cctv, ., they are in the car park, near the tunnel, ., offenders not known, ., sending to 

area for patrols to move on as they are begging in a public place 

 

Page 82



29/07/2022 

Log MP‐20220729‐0679 

** Fighting **, ., inft reporting group of street drinkers fighting outside of a/l, ., ., inft calling from 

security room, ., 2 males fighting, the rest are watching, ., desc male 1 ‐ white male, grey beard, bald 

head, black top, ., desc of male 2 ‐ white male, grey top, blue tracksuit bottoms ‐ approx. mid 20s, ., 

inft says the male in the blue tracksuit bottoms is the one they seen hitting the other male on the 

floor, . 

Arrests within area x61 (Last six months 22/02/2022 ‐ 22/08/2022) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Arrests include (extracts from circumstances of arrest as recorded on custody record) 
 

22/04/2022  

22000276013  

St Werburgh’s Square  

Page 83



D and D ‐ officers on high viz foot patrol in Birkenhead town centre. Officer informed by security at 

Pyramids that they were concerned for a male in St Werburgh’s sq. who appeared to be off his head. 

Security pointed out detained person. Officers have approached detained person, who was very xxx, 

showing all signs. Detained person repeatedly swore at officers including calling the officers 'c***s'. 

Detained person was warned several times to desist but continued and offered violence to officers. 

Mop watching on. 

 

27/05/2022 

22000365627 

St Werburgh’s Square 

Section 5 Public Order ‐ circs being police called to an altercation on St Werburgh’s sq, Birkenhead. 

Following report that a group of street drinkers had been fighting. On arrival officer speaks to 

security and pcso colleagues who had been monitoring situation on CCTV throughout. It is alleged the 

d/p who is clearly intoxicated had begun an altercation with an unknown male and he was seen to be 

acting aggressively, throwing punches and drawing lots of attention from passers by. D/p's action 

likely to cause harassment alarm and distress to members of public. Situation still ongoing up to 

point when police arrive. D/p c and a. 

03/06/2022 

22000383083 

Claughton Road 

Breach of CBO ‐ on 19/2/22 detained person issued with CBO at Wirral mags on of the conditions has 

an exclusion area including part Birkenhead town centre. Today detained person capture on CCTV 

within that area with operators directing officers to the detained person. Location of detained 

person's being detained was within the prohibited area.  

09/06/2022 

22000396415 

Oliver Street East, Birkenhead 

D&D ‐ AO on mobile patrol on Oliver Street East, Birkenhead.  Detained person sighted in an alleyway 

off the street.  Initially detained person flags officers down, and reports that he has been chased 

down the alleyway after being chased by unknown group of males, after drinking in the brass 

balance ph.  Ao tries to assist detained person, who immediately becomes argumentative, telling 

officers to "f*** off".  Detained person asked multiple times if he requires police assistance, however 

continues to be hostile and aggressive, resulting in him being restrained against the van.  Detained 

person sent on his way.  Detained person however runs to passenger side of the van calling arresting 

officer  "a f***ing fruit.             

23/07/2022 

22000528601 

Oliver Street, Birkenhead 

Drunk & Disorderly ‐ ao outside temple bar on Oliver Street in Birkenhead conducting licensing 

checks. Door staff have ejected the detained person as he had been causing issues inside the 

premises. The detained person was lingering outside and goading the door staff. The detained person 

Page 84



was told to leave the area by the ao a number of times. The detained person refused to leave the 

area and started to shout at the ao telling her to f**k off, shut the fuck up. C&a. No reply made. 

Handcuffed to rear. Detained person started to headbutt the rear windscreen of police vehicle. 

Detained person had to be taken to the floor.    

 

 

09/08/2022 

22000581558 

Exmouth Street, Birkenhead 

D&D ‐ 2300 hrs officer driving along Exmouth Street heard shouting and screaming. Stopped to speak 

to the detained person who was responsible. She was advised to leave and officer continued to 

another incident. On returning to the area a short while later detained person was in the middle of 

the road, shouting screaming and swearing. Unable to calm her, slurred speech, smelled of 

intoxicants, unsteady on feet. C and arrested. Replied "f**k off". Public decency, cuffed to the front. 

PAVA drawn but not deployed   

15/08/2022 

22000599546 

Barton Street, Birkenhead 

***D&D, crim dam x2, sec 39 assault, assault emergency worker, sec 4a POA**** Officers attend 

Osbourne Road for a report of affray which was cdtp. Desc of detained person given and officer 

locate detained person. Detained person has allegedly kicked a mop, detained person has then seen 

by police to kicked a car and throw can of beer at it. C&a. Detained person has then kicked police 

vehicle whilst inside causing damage. Detained person has then tried to kick officer. Whilst in suite 

detained person has called detention officer a d**e. Detained person showing all signs of 

drunkenness also arrested for D&D.   

 

 

Local officers 

Local Officers are receiving more and more reports of theft of alcohol from the retailers within the 

SCIP area.  This is due to the prevalence of licenced retailers offering alcohol for sale but also in part 

due to the market for alcohol within the SCIP area amongst street drinkers and alcohol dependants.  

Drug dependants will also target alcohol theft from within the SCIP area as they have a ready market 

amongst the street drinkers for the spoils.  Even the larger retailers are a target of this.  

In respect of the night‐time economy area of Birkenhead, Merseyside Police have historically 

provided a higher Policing presence within this area on Friday and Saturday evenings when the 

likelihood of violence and disorder within the area is at its highest. 

 Since the force has been in receipt of additional Government funding (Violence reduction fund) the 

number of Officers deployed to the night‐time economy area of Birkenhead has been increased 

utilising extra Officers as part of “Operation Grip.”  The objective of this operation was to increase 

Page 85



high visibility Policing within the night‐time economy area to reduce the impact of alcohol abuse and 

the associated violence caused. 

 

 SCIP area Street Drinking  

Within the SCIP area, street drinking has been, and continues to be a major issue for Policing, 

residents, retailers, and members of the public in general.    

Due to the historic element and prevalence of street drinking within the SCIP area, many of the 

retailers, residents and public have become somewhat tolerant of the issue and as a result by their 

own admission to local Officers will no longer report this to Police unless things get out of hand. 

The local Officers within Birkenhead deal with street drinking within the SCIP area literally on a daily 

basis, and also the effects of such.    

There is currently a total of four known street drinkers who have either a ASBO or CBO against them 

currently, one of whom is on his second. There is also one CBO application currently going through 

the courts and one closure order going through the court process for Central Hotel (last expired Jan 

2022 but further application in the process of being submitted to court due to a return of issues with 

street drinkers and youths). 

Associated crime in relation to street drinking is commonplace however producing any kind of 

tangible figures in relation to this is particularly difficult as due to the nature of the individuals 

involved, many of these crimes go completely un‐reported.  

The high concentration of alcohol dependants within Birkenhead Town Centre is likely due to the 

locality of the services on offer within the area such as the YMCA, Salvation Army, Charles Thompson 

Mission, The Ark, Rose Brae, Wirral Ways to recovery to name but a few.  The service users to the 

prior mentioned are often affected by substance/alcohol misuse issues. The easy access to alcohol 

within the SCIP area due to the high concentration of both licenced premises or off‐licenced 

premises is seen by local Officers to exasperate the issue around street drinking and alcohol abuse.  

 

Community Officer input 

In April 2019 a new Police Officer post was created in conjunction with Merseyside Police and the 

Business Improvement District.  The post was funded 100% by levy paying businesses within the BID 

area (Birkenhead Town Centre) The concept being that the Officer works within the geographical 

area compromising of the BID levy payers in order to address their issues directly. Constable 5056 

Greg Hawkswell took up the role due to his familiarity and experience within Birkenhead Town 

Centre which comprises of the last 12 years. Constable Hawkswell had been asked to comment on 

alcohol related issued within the SCIP area which he has experienced in the last 12 years of his Police 

service but also more recently since the inception of his role as BID Officer in 2019. He had gave the 

following statement in relation to the issues faced in the area in 2019.  

“Although the sale of alcohol within the SCIP area is controlled (as everywhere) with licensing 

conditions, I feel that it is the sheer amount of establishments selling alcohol which contributes 

largely to the issues alcohol creates within Birkenhead Town Centre. I find that the level of 

robustness and willingness to challenge those who are trying to purchase alcohol varies greatly 

from premises to premises.  By this I can state that it is common practice amongst street drinkers 

Page 86



in Birkenhead, that if they are refused alcohol in one off licence of their choice, (maybe due to 

intoxication or the fact they are a known street drinker) then they just walk to the next one, or the 

next one until they do get served.   There are so many premises offering the sale of alcohol within 

Birkenhead Town Centre that they don’t have to go far to find somewhere that will serve them, 

even if they are refused in one or more off licences first. The number of retail outlets selling 

alcohol means that this technique ensures that they will never not be able to obtain alcohol if they 

so wish.  As a result it is the issuing of licences which I feel is the greatest area requiring on‐going 

scrutiny and control by the local authority and their partners within the already defined SCIP area. 

My daily duties within Birkenhead Town Centre directly involve dealing with Street drinking, 

either reported or un‐reported, seizure of alcohol, associated ASB and begging amongst street 

drinkers, assaults amongst street drinkers and other offences such as theft committed by street 

drinkers or those with other substance abuse issues. During my many visits and engagements with 

BID levy payers as part of my duties, alcohol abuse, street drinking and the issues around this are 

very often at the forefront of my discussions as this is having a direct and daily impact not just on 

the retailers but also the members of the public who utilise the Town Centre and are being put off 

from doing so by the alcohol issues there. My work and the work of my colleagues will continue to 

address this area of concern, however we must do so with the support of our partners and ever 

more so with strict controls around the availability of alcohol within the SCIP area.” 

 – Con 5056 Greg Hawkswell – Birkenhead BID Officer 09/09/2019.  

 

Constable Peter Hanson is the Dedicated Ward Manager for Birkenhead Town Centre, and he had 

the following to say in relation to alcohol related crime within the SCIP area: ‐  

Statement of Constable 3638 Peter Hanson                                        
 

I am the dedicated Ward manager for Birkenhead Town centre. For the past 5 years I have been 
working with our partners dealing with Street drinking issues in and around the Town Centre. These 
issues can either be reported or un‐reported and involve, the seizure of alcohol, associated ASB and 
begging amongst the street drinkers.  
 
I have been fortunate enough to see first‐hand the value of having the designated SCIP area in place 
and it was evident that the majority of retailers agreed and adhered to the controlled licensing 
conditions. It was also pleasing to visit many of the retailers, speaking to them about their alcohol sales 
and the flexibility they showed in removing or replacing items from shelves to play their part in 
improving the area. 
 
These improvements allowed Merseyside police together with our partners to actively engage with 
individuals to offer support and encourage them away from the Town centre and into service. 
 
Unfortunately Post Covid I am witnessing a heavy increase in alcohol uses on the streets and the 
numbers of Street Drinkers are increasing weekly. This steady increase has instantly caused issues in 
the Town Centre impacting businesses and the public directly. 
 
These incidents have resulted in assaults including assaults on emergency workers and other offences 
such as thefts and increased ASB. 
 
Although the sale of alcohol within the SCIP area is still currently controlled with licensing conditions it 
is evident that the number of establishments are now selling alcohol contributes largely to the issues 
alcohol creates within Birkenhead Town Centre.  

Page 87



 
I am concerned that with the SCIP expiring the current increase in street drinking will only worsen and a 
recent visit to several retailers highlighted that they are starting to sell single items of alcohol in the 
form of cans of cider to street drinkers for low costs such as 99p per can. Some establishments will even 
have these items concealed from display and the items themselves are only known for sale by the 
Street Drinkers themselves. In some‐ways this stock is sold specifically for street drinkers. 
 
Without the SCIP practices used by Street Drinkers to obtain alcohol will become increasingly more 
difficult and frustrating to control. I believe retailers will ignore licensing laws to make a sale and with 
the high number of retailers selling alcohol in the area will mean that alcohol is easily accessible by 
Street Drinkers and others.  
 
It is of note that Street Drinkers will move from retailer to retailer in the Town and do not have to 
travel very far to purchase alcohol. These groups will often then “sit off” in locations where they know 
they have easy access to retailers selling cheap alcohol and without the SCIP area in place the 
management of these environments will become even more problematic. Importantly Police are 
receiving a growing number of complaints from businesses and the public regarding these groups 
returning to the  
 
The growing issue now is that even when challenged or refused alcohol at a licensed premises It is way 
too easy for individuals and groups to quickly locate to another retailer who will serve them. Retailers 
selling alcohol are so condensed around the area that individuals looking to purchase alcohol do not 
have to travel far to find what they want. Without SCIP this will become even more relaxed, and the 
strengths of alcohol served to individuals will increase. 
 
My work and the work of my colleagues will continue to address this area of concern; however, we 
must do so with the support of our partners and ever more so with strict controls around the 
availability of alcohol within the SCIP area.” 

 

Community survey 

 

Following a survey of the local community the following questions were posed. 

 

Do you suffer from ASB in your area? 

84% Yes 

16% No 

Do you suffer from alcohol related ASB in your area? 

76% Yes 

24% No 

Do you think licensed shops contribute to the ASB? 

57% Yes 

43% No 

Statistics in relation to 37 local business respondents to the survey conducted by Wirral Community officers. 

Page 88



Community Comments 

 

Do you have any other comments in relation to alcohol related ASB issues in Birkenhead? 

 

“Partially because street drinkers are clever and know where they can sit without having drink 

taken off them” 

 

“I don't live in the town centre but drinkers are often seen urinating again st walls or in bushes 

where they now sit on benches near to old central hotel....I've just witnessed it and told officers 

who went to the location.” 

 

“Street Drinkers causing a lot of issues. Beggars causing a lot of issues in the area. Groups of 

youths with balaclavas causing massive issues in the town centre and at McDonalds. Home 

Bargains and the like selling cheap alcohol, possibly contributing to these issues.” ‐ Pyramids 

security staff. 

 

“Street drinkers and beggars in town centre causing issues, needs more patrols in the area. No 

current issues with youths.” ‐ Asda, Security. 

 

 
“Adult mainly issues Iceland have stopped selling 3 litre cider for this reason. Stop YMCA adult 
coming to town centre when drunk as they are issue.” 
 

 
“Adults drink alcohol on benches in town after leaving YMCA adults now engaging with local 
youths who also sit on benches drinking alcohol. all are rowdy they start throwing empty bottles 
around. Change law make town no drinking zone but who is going to enforce it.” 
 

“Problem is homeless or drug dependents, drinking alcohol asking money asking elderly. Shouldn't 

be sitting in town centre drunk not acceptable but should still be able to access services that are 

nearby.” 

 

“ASB has always been an issues in Birkenhead it happens all day long with residents from ymca 

sitting in town today as they have nowhere else to go. more teams needed to engage with them 

24hrs a day to organise their days / activities, they need incentives. They need to stay out of town 

its intimidating to shoppers. No issues with kids, kids grow up and move on. 

 

Report prepared by Sgt 5356 James Watson on behalf of Inspector Buckney, Wirral Targeted Team, 

Local Policing. September 2022 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICE SURVEY OF LOCAL BUSINESSES 
SEPTEMBER 2022 

 

Do you suffer with 
ASB in your area? 

Do you suffer with 
alcohol related ASB? 

Do you think licensed shops 
contribute to the ASB? 

Do you have any other comments in relation to alcohol related ASB 
issues in Birkenhead? 

No  Yes  Yes  Partially because street drinkers are clever and know where they can sit 
without having drink taken off them 

Yes 
   

Yes around Benti ck street with the youths congregating  
Yes  No  Yes  Youths gather at takeaway ( McDonald's and my children don't like 

going there now ) 
Yes  Yes  Yes  I went to Asda and seen Street drinkers  gathering near to Asda 
No  Yes  Yes  I don't live in the town centre but drinkers are often seen urinating 

again st walls or in bushes where they now sit on benches near to old 
central hotel....I've just witnessed it and told officers who went to the 
location. 

Yes  Yes  No  Birkenhead Market, security. 
Yes  Yes  Yes  Street Drinkers causing a lot of issues. 

Beggars causing a lot of issues in the area. 
Groups of youths with balaclavas causing massive issues in the town 
centre and at McDonalds. 
 
Home Bargains and the like selling cheap alcohol, possibly contributing 
to these issues. 
 
‐ Pyramids security staff. 

Yes  Yes  No  Street drinkers and beggars in town centre causing issues, needs more 
patrols in the area. 
 
No current issues with youths. 
 
‐ Asda, Security. 

Yes  No  No  ASB issues caused by kids in bus stop 

Appendix 3 

P
age 91



Yes  Yes  Yes  Lots of asb,  not going to solve it . 
Yes  Yes  Yes 

 

Yes  Yes  Yes 
 

Yes  Yes  Yes 
 

Yes  Yes  Yes  Alcohol isn't the issue its drugs  
Yes  Yes  No  Doesn't matter where alcohol comes from they will get it 
No  No  Yes  Alcohol and drugs. Both adults and kids.  
Yes  Yes  Yes  No 
Yes  Yes  Yes  Not really 
Yes  Yes  No  No  comment 
Yes  Yes  No  It will happen anyway with or without shops selling 
Yes  Yes  No  It's become normal to see asb with adults think they do want they want. 

Shop fine to sell alcohol  but be sensible.  
Yes  Yes  No  It has become the norm to see ASB/kids and Adults in and around Town 

Centre  
Yes  Yes  No  Young people can get there hands on drugs and alcohol easy so it 

doesn't matter if shops sell alcohol  
Yes  No  No  Not just Alcohol but other issues are related to ASB 
Yes  Yes  Yes  Adult mainly issues Iceland have stopped selling  3 litre cider for this 

reason. Stop YMCA adult coming to town centre when drunk as they are 
issue. 

Yes  Yes  No  A more visual deterrent is needed 
No  No  No  No 
No  No  No  No issues  
Yes  Yes  Yes  Adults drink alcohol on benches in town after leaving ymca adults now 

engaging with local youths who also sit on benches  drinking alcohol . all 
are rowdy  they start throwing empty bottles around. Change law make 
town no drinking zone but who's going to enforce it. 

Yes  Yes  Yes  No 
Yes  No  No  Alcohol is not the issue it is drugs that are more used. 

P
age 92



Yes  Yes  Yes  Problem is homeless or drug dependents, drinking alcohol  asking 
money asking elderly. Shouldn't  be sitting in town centre drunk not 
acceptable but should  still be able to access services that are nearby . 

Yes  Yes  Yes  It is the adults causing the issues sitting on benches all day. 
Yes  Yes  Yes  Since Iceland stopped selling 3 litre Frosty Jack's the sitting around has 

dwindled. 
No  No  No  Not reallt 
Yes  Yes  No  Asb has always been an issues in bhead it happens all day long with 

residents  from ymca sitting in town today as they have no where else 
to go. more teams needed to engage  with them 24hrs a day to organise 
their  days / activities,  they need incentives.  They need to stay out of 
town its intimidating  to shoppers . No issues with kids, kids grow up 
and move on 

Yes  Yes  Yes  More drug related  
 

P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Wirral MBC  
Licensing Authority 
 
12 September 2022    
 
Dear Sir/Madam 

 
REVIEW OF CUMULATIVE IMPACT POLICY (CIP)  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above.    
 
I am a Licensing Consultant, based in St Helens, and have been involved in licensing for over 30 years 
now.  I have been providing licensing consultancy services under the business name of JL Licence and 
services for around 10 years and mainly deal with applications and matters relating to the Licensing Act 
2003. Many of my clients are based In Wirral and I regularly submit various applications across the 
Wirral region.  
 
Prior to becoming a consultant, I was employed by Knowsley Borough Council for numerous years in 
their Licensing Team as Principal Licensing Officer. I was responsible for the running and day to day 
management of the licensing service, including all matters relating to the Licensing Act 2003 such as the 
implementation of the Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 
I haven’t submitted a new or variation application within this area for several years, although I have 
submitted several new applications over the last couple of years in other areas of Merseyside which at 
the time had a CIP in place.  
 
My concern is that new licence applications in respect of CIP areas are just routinely objected to, and 
then refused. I feel that there could possibly be a ‘blanket ban’ / ‘iron curtain’ on new licences being 
granted in this area and I’ll explain my reasons for this view.  
 
A CIP, applied correctly and appropriately, can of course provide a good filter in respect of sub‐standard 
applications for new licences and variation applications. However, there are negatives and I am 
concerned that these negatives may be occurring here and/or they could occur should the CIP continue. 
 
For example;  
 

 Stagnation ‐ a CIP can preserve a bad status quo, locking in the existing operators with, in some 
cases, minimal or no licence conditions and possibly poor operating regimes;  

 

 Deterrence ‐ a CIP can also deter new and responsible applicants/operators from applying for 
new licences.    

 
I am aware that for many years some responsible authorities and interested parties will always just 
object to new licence applications based on the fact that the site happens to be located within a CIP. 
There seems to be a general view amongst some responsible authorities, in particular Merseyside Police 
and the Licensing Authority (as a Responsible Authority), that they must object to an application within a 
CIP ‐ clearly this should not be the case. 
 
This has certainly been the case in the Liverpool City Council and St Helens areas over previous years 
when they previously had CIPs in place.  It also appears to happen in Wirral. 

Appendix 4 

Page 95



I have previously carried out a pre‐application consultation with the Police and Licensing Authority (as a 
Responsible Authority) on a new licence application that fell within the Wirral CIP – and the response 
was that there would be a representation ‘as it’s in the CIP’. 
 
I am currently in the process of working with a client about a new application for a premises licence for a 
site (a shop) which is within the Wirral CIP.  The shop would be a convenience store and would also like 
to offer some alcohol sales for consumption off the premises.  
 
I recently contacted Merseyside Police in advance of submitting an application to get their views and 
was advised that they would be ok with a licence being approved for this shop with hours of 7am to 
11pm. Several days later, I was advised by Merseyside Police that they hadn’t realised that this shop was 
within the CIP and so they would be objecting outright to any such application. I have no problem with 
the oversight, my concern is the rationale for objecting outright – ‘it’s in the CIP’.   
 
Merseyside Police also mentioned the ‘rebuttable presumption’ to refuse new applications in a CIP area 
when representations are received ‐ I refer to ‘rebuttable presumption’ further on in my letter.   
 
In my experience, it appears that little consideration, if any, is given by some responsible authorities on 
the merits of an individual application when the application is for a site within a CIP area.  
 
In Wirral, it appears that the Police, and maybe the Licensing Authority (as a responsible authority) and 
possibly some of the other responsible authorities, believe that they are expected to make a 
representation just because an application relates to a CIP area, and it’s in the Policy. It’s as if they feel 
that, regardless of the proposals put forward, that they must object and then let the Licensing Sub 
Committee determine the application. 
 
This is not how it should work. Regardless of whether the application is within a CIP area or not, each 
application must be considered on its merits.  
 
I have also previously submitted a new licence application in Wirral on behalf of a shop that was just 
outside the CIP area – really close to the specified streets but not actually within the identified CIP 
streets.  No representations were received from the Police, the Licensing Authority nor from any of the 
other authorities.  Yet, if an identical application was submitted in one of the nearby CIP streets, there 
would certainly be representations from the Police, the Licensing Authority, etc. 
 
Poorly managed licensed premises in all areas, regardless of a CIP being in place or not, should of course 
be targeted and dealt with as appropriate. Regular compliance checks should be made on licensed 
premises in the area and appropriate action taken. The good operators will welcome this. 
 
Evidenced problems with individual premises should be dealt with via intervention and enforcement, 
and ultimately a licence review if appropriate. Enforcement is crucial and is highlighted in your Policy at 
section 12. 
 
When was the last Police and/or Licensing Authority enforcement exercise in this area carried out? 
What was the outcome?  It would be useful to see the results of any such exercises over the last year or 
so.  
 
Surely, the Council want to attract responsible operators to trade in these areas to raise standards and 
bring about more investment ‐ this is particularly crucial at the minute. Yet what we may have, or what 
could happen, is the same shops selling the same goods, and new (and responsible) applicants looking 
elsewhere as the CIP is a big hurdle to overcome.  

Page 96



I know from experience that new applicants have submitted extremely strong applications in various CIP 
areas in Merseyside – and the applications always attracted the same representations from the same 
Authorities.  
 
I am aware that existing licensed businesses in a CIP area actually have an increased price/premium on 
them – because there is a trade view that there is a blanket ban on new licences.  New buyers are either 
forced to pay the premium, rather than submit their own new application, or find somewhere different. 
 
The current Policy – in terms of cumulative impact – outlines the problems and issues within the area 
but makes no reference to anything positive such as what an experienced, well‐prepared operator with 
a comprehensive operating schedule has to offer which could improve the area. The CIP does not seek 
to provide any help or guidance to applicants.   
 
In 2018, the Journal of Licensing published an article by Professor Roy Light (Counsel) on CIPs.  It stated 
that as of March 2018, across the UK, 107 Local Authorities had put in place 223 CIPs.  Within those 223 
CIP areas, in the year ending March 2017, a total of 1,124 applications for new premises licences were 
made.  Of those, 94% were granted.  This means that, nationally, just 6% of new applications in a CIP 
area were refused.  These figures were provided by Licensing Authorities across the UK in their annual 
returns on various matters.  
 
These national figures (albeit from 2018) suggest that Licensing Authorities are granting new premises 
licences that are conditioned appropriately and robustly so as not to add to any pre‐existing cumulative 
impact within their particular areas. However, in my experience, the local position across the 
Merseyside CIPs appears to be a bit different.    
 
Is there any such information available for this CIP since it was introduced and then reviewed?   
 
Have any further new and or variation applications (for off sales) been submitted to the Council since 
the CIP was first introduced in July 2017?  
 
If so, were any representations received? By whom? 
 
What was the outcome? 
 
It would be interesting and useful information to be made aware of ‐ please let me know.   
 
Not long before the Wirral CIP was first introduced in this area, I acted for a new applicant who applied 
for a new premises licence in Grange Road West. The application was approved in December 2016 and 
the shop is still operating as a convenience store selling a wide range of goods including some alcohol 
for consumption off the premises. As I say above, please provide the details of new and full variation 
applications which have been considered since July 2017.  
 
Since Covid, and the devasting and negative impact on business, in particular the hospitality trade, many 
Licensing Authorities have taken the decision to not renew or indeed review their CIP’s/CIA’s. This 
includes Councils such as Nottingham, Birmingham, Leicester, Hammersmith and Fulham, Trafford, 
Hereford and Wigan.  I appreciate that there may be others that have renewed them. 
 
Locally, the position is as follows; 
 
Liverpool City Council did not renew their CIPs (including for off licences) in December 2020;   
 

Page 97



St Helens – their CIA (off licensed premises) covering the Town Centre ward expired in Jan 2022 and 
there doesn’t appear to have been any move to reconsider or review it to date;  
 
Sefton, Knowsley (and Halton) do not have any CIPs in place and no plans (as far as I am aware) to do so.   
The only CIP currently in place in Merseyside is this area of Wirral.  
 
Your Statement of Licensing Policy (paragraphs 10.7 and 10.8) refers to partnership working and the 
other mechanisms for ‘addressing issues when individuals behave badly away from licensed premises’. 
These other mechanisms include Police enforcement of normal law regarding disorder and ASB including 
the issue of fixed penalties, designation of areas where alcohol cannot be consumed, confiscation of 
alcohol from persons drinking alcohol in a designated area, etc.  
 
It is important that the various mechanisms and powers are being used as appropriate and as required. 
 
Street drinking is very often referred to in respect of many new licence applications, especially within a 
CIP. This can be a difficult and challenging issue for the authorities, and also for local businesses selling 
alcohol.  Street drinking was referred to when the CIP was first introduced and also when the CIP was 
reviewed in 2019. Paragraph 14.8 of the Policy states that ‘evidence was provided by Merseyside Police 
that street drinking continues to be prevalent in the area’.   
 
One of the other mechanisms and an effective way of dealing with street drinking, if applied and 
enforced appropriately, is a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO). This would give the Police and other 
Authorised Officers the powers to tackle street drinking and any associated issues. This is referred to in 
the Policy as a designated area and is one of the other mechanisms that can be used to address local 
issues.  
 
A PSPO is a provision created by the Anti‐Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 and, briefly, it is  
intended to deal with particular nuisances or problems in a defined area that are considered to be 
detrimental to the local community’s quality of life.  
 
There is a current consultation underway on a new PSPO covering the Woodchurch area and the draft 
PSPO includes the following terms;  
 
‘No person shall drink or attempt to drink alcohol in any public space within the Restricted area following 
receipt of a requirement not to do so given to them by a Police Officer or an authorised officer.  
 
Where a Police Officer or an authorised officer reasonably believes that a person has been consuming 
alcohol, or that a person intends to consume alcohol in circumstances in which doing so may lead to a 
breach of this prohibition, the Police Officer or authorised officer may require that person:  
 
(i) Not to consume, in breach of the prohibition, alcohol or anything which the Police Officer or 
authorised person reasonably believes to be alcohol. 
 
(ii) To surrender anything in that person’s possession which is, or which the Police Officer or authorised 
person reasonably believes to be, alcohol or a container for alcohol.  
 
A Police Officer or authorised person may dispose of anything surrendered to them as a result of a 
requirement imposed by him or her in whatever way he or she thinks appropriate. 
 
 A Police Officer or an authorised person who imposes a requirement pursuant to this prohibition must 
tell the person that failing without reasonable excuse to comply with the requirement is an offence. 

Page 98



I am aware that there are several PSPO’s in place in Wirral yet there doesn’t appear be one in place in 
this CIP area? Surely this would assist.  
 
It begs the question that if street drinking and other associated issues are so problematic then why isn’t 
there a PSPO in place for the area? (Note ‐ if there is a PSPO in place please let me know and accept my 
apologies).   
 
The Policy, at paragraph 12, refers to staff training and awareness of local issues, and this is important. 
Paragraph 11.2 refers to ‘Custodians’ training which several of my clients have previously attended – is 
this still available?  
 
The phrase ‘rebuttable presumption’ is regularly used in sections 13 and 14 of your Policy (dealing with 
cumulative impact) and is also used by responsible authorities when applications in a CIP area are 
submitted and then considered by a Licensing Sub Committee.   
 
Paragraph 14.10 states, in respect of premises selling or wishing to sell alcohol for consumption off the 
premises, that there is ‘a presumption against granting any application for a Premises Licence or a 
variation that is likely to add to the existing cumulative impact’.  
 
The term ‘rebuttable presumption’ was contained within the previous Guidance. However, this term was 
removed from the updated Guidance, issued in 2018.  The presumption to refuse is no longer within the 
Guidance.    
 
Summary 
 
There is a potential with a CIP that if they are used to absolutely refuse all new applications, that this will 
stifle and restrict development and prevent new and potentially better operators and investors from 
coming into the areas  
 
New and variation applications can be submitted and they can still of course be properly scrutinised and 
considered on their merits by the responsible authorities.  
 
I believe that the presence of a CIA would continue to be used by responsible authorities to routinely 
object to applications. It has happened like that before and my concern is that it would be likely to 
continue.  
 
There are various other mechanisms and powers to tackle with any local ASB and disorder issues. These 
should be fully utilised. 
 
For all of the reasons outlined in this letter, my view is that the CIP should not be ‘renewed’.    
 
If you have any queries please let me know and I’d be grateful to be kept informed in this matter.  
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 Ian Rushton                                                           
JL Licence and Retail       
Tel; 07909 511953                                     
Email ‐ ijrushy@hotmail.com                           

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



LIST OF CONSULTEES Appendix  5

10 O'Clock Shop
ABI Express
Amir Balti House
Asda Stores Limited
Birkenhead and Tranmere Ward Councillors
Bollywood Lounge
Charing Cross Hotel
Chegone Takeaway
Claughton Ward Councillors
CPL Training Limited
Genting Casino UK Limited
Ian Rushton, Licensing Consultant
Iceland Foods Ltd
JD Wetherspoon Plc
Lauries Events Limited
Lee Marvin Takeaway
Lidl Great Britain Limited
Marks and Spencer Plc
McDonalds Restaurants Limited
Mecca Bingo Limited
Mersey Regional Ambulance Service
Mr P Douglas, Licensing Consultant
Mr Yummie
New Sunrise Restaurant
Papa Pizza
Pizza Perfect
Platinum Bar
Red Buddha
Responsible Authorities under the Licensing Act 2003
Sainsbury's Supermarkets Limited
Savers Health and Beauty Limited
Shell Uk Oil Products Limited
Summer Palace Restaurant
Sun Ying
T.J. Morris Limited
Tesco Stores Limited
The Beach
The Cool Room
The George and Dragon
The Little Theatre
The Mackenzie
The Richmond
Todays Local
Trustees of the Diocese of Shrewsbury
Wawel
Windsor Castle
Wine Lodge & Tap Room
Wm Morrison Supermarkets Plc

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Act Committee – Terms of Reference 
 
The principal role of the Licensing Act Committee is to act as the administrative 
committee, acting under statutory delegation pursuant to the Licensing Act 2003, and 
responsible for making decisions as licensing authority under the Licensing Act 2003 
and Gambling Act 2005. 
 

Page 103

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Licensing Panel
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 08/06/2022 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 22/06/2022 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 23/06/2022 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 11/08/2022 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 16/09/2022 Licensing Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 23/09/2022 Licensing Panel
	Minutes


	5 Cumulative Impact Assessment Review
	Appendix 1. Statement of Licensing Policy
	Appendix 2. The Effects of Alcohol Related Incidents in and Around the SCIP Area Report
	Appendix 3. Police Survey of Local Businesses September 2022
	Appendix 4. Letter JL Licence and Retail
	Appendix 5. List of Consultees

	 Terms of Reference

